CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee

held on Thursday, 5th February, 2015 at Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

PRESENT

Councillor M Simon (Chairman) Councillor J Saunders (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors C Andrew, R Domleo, L Jeuda and A Moran

Apologies

Councillors S Jones

ALSO PRESENT

Councillor J Clowes – Portfolio Holder for Care and Health in the Community Jacki Wilkes – Eastern Cheshire Clinical Commissioning Group

OFFICERS PRESENT

Brenda Smith – Director of Adult Social Care and Independent Living Heather Grimbaldeston – Director of Public Health Rob Walker – Commissioning Manger Jon Wilkie – Project and Performance Manager James Morley – Scrutiny Officer

68 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting on 4 December 2014 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

69 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest

70 DECLARATION OF PARTY WHIP

There were no declarations of party whip

71 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION

There were no members of the public present who wished to speak

72 CARERS TASK AND FINISH GROUP FINAL REPORT

Councillor M Simon, Chairman of the Carers Task and Finish Group (the Group), presented the Group's Final Report to be approved by the Committee before being submitted to the Cabinet for consideration.

Councillor Simon gave an overview of the report and the process that the Group had gone through during its review. The Group's report contained recommendations to both the Council and health service commissioners and providers.

During discussion about the report the following points arose:

- One of the main issues carers had with current services was the requirement to repeat information about their case to various agencies/services. Information sharing between services was an important practice that needed to be put in place.
- A series of carers event had been held during January 2015 as follow up to the Middlewich event which the task group members had originally attended in November 2013. Some of the Group's recommendations had been tested with carers at these events and had received positive feedback.
- Carers had enjoyed the events and the social aspect of simply getting carers together to discuss their issues was useful to them. It had been agreed that carers events would become a regular occurrence in future, possibly on a quarterly basis.
- Some of the Group recommendations were elements of the current integrated care projects which were taking place between the Council and Clinical Commissioning Groups. For instance a pilot system for shared patient/resident records was being tested, this needed to ensure safeguarding of data.
- Guidance on the Care Act 2014 was being produced on an inconsistent basis however some elements of the Act relating to carers would be in force by April 2015.
- The Borough needed to consider how it was going to deal with its relative large and growing elderly population which included elderly carers.
- Identification of carers was difficult however every service that interacted with cared for people should be aware of potential carers and the role they may be playing.
- It was important to ensure that young carers were provided with the same opportunities for further education as their contemporaries. It was particularly difficult to identify young carers as they often did not wish to be identified for fear of being taken into care or perceived stigma of their caring role.
- Carers breaks were considered particularly important to support carers in maintaining their caring role, even if only for a few hours a week. The Dementia task and finish group which had reported in 2013 has also identified the role of carers and the importance of carer breaks.
- Parent carers of children with disabilities also needed to be taken into consideration. It was suggested that the Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee might wish to conduct a review specifically about parent carers. Parent carers also existed for adults with disabilities as more people with disabilities were surviving longer due to medical advances. This raised the issue of parent carers reaching old age and their ability to care for their child being diminished. Adult Social Care was considering this issue.

- It was suggested that the Committee should review the task groups report in 12 months time to establish whether issues raised had been address and whether improvements had been made.
- The Committee was informed that a Carers Strategy was being developed by the Council and CCGs and would be present for consideration at a future meeting.
- In relation to recommendations made to health commissioners and providers the suggestion of carer champions was supported. It was suggested that awareness of carers and the role the played in supporting health services needed to be raised within the NHS.
- The Council and CCGs were consideration how respite for the cared for and carers breaks could be more joined up and how funding could be used by carers more flexibly.

Councillor Simon thanked all members and officers who had taken part in the review and proposed that the report be approved by the Committee.

RESOLVED:

(a) That the Carers Task and Finish Group Final Report be approved and submitted to Cabinet and health commissioners and providers for consideration.

(b) That a response to the report from both Cabinet and health commissioners and providers be requested and presented to the Committee.

73 ASSISTIVE TECHNOLOGY TASK AND FINISH GROUP FINAL REPORT

Councillor J Saunders, Chairman of the Assistive Technology Task and Finish Group (the Group), presented the Group's final report to be approved by the Committee before being submitted to Cabinet for consideration.

Councillor Saunders gave an overview of the report and the recommendations to Cabinet. The Group had given consideration to three policy areas: Effectiveness of Assistive Technology (AT); Universal Accessibility; and Charging.

During the discussion about the report the following points were made:

- The current charges for AT were not sustainable and the Group believed a new charging structure was required. However concern was expressed that the charges shouldn't be increase so much that people were discouraged from using the service.
- The Group believed that using AT in homes can help maintain independence and reduce the demand for residential care.
- There should be a drive to promote the use of AT to people who currently had low to moderate care needs in the interests of early intervention and prevention.
- Good marketing was required in order to increase the public's awareness of AT and the benefits. An increase in promotional activity was required including given people independent access to what was available.
- The Group second recommendation in relation to ensuring commissioned providers incorporated AT into their services would be an area where the strongest impact could be made.

- GP surgeries would be a useful place to advertise AT and GPs and other health service providers should be encouraged to promote the use of AT for early intervention and prevention and improving quality of life.
- It was suggested that AT could help to reduce the needs for other aspects of care, reducing overall costs to the Council.
- Individuals who were already receiving care should also be encouraged to independently look at additional AT which would help them to improve their quality of life.
- It was suggested that Extra Care Housing should be considered in the same way as affordable housing as being necessary for development in the Borough.
- Peterborough Council was given as an example of an authority with a useful adult social care services directory and a similar system would be useful in Cheshire East.
- The possibility of offering AT services free of charge to over 85s living alone was raised as a potential way of increasing the use of AT and reducing demand for residential care. It was suggested that a recommendation to produce a business case for this option be developed by officers to see if it was viable and would be effective.

RESOLVED:

- (a) That the Assistive Technology Task and Finish Group's Final Report be approved and submitted to Cabinet for consideration.
- (b) That an additional recommendation be added as follows: "6.11 That officers be requested to explore the possibility of providing telecare services free of charge to over 85s who live alone and whether this would be financially sustainable and effective in maintaining independence."
- (c) That a response to the report from both Cabinet and health commissioners and providers be requested and presented to the Committee.

74 THE CARE ACT 2014 IN CHESHIRE EAST

This item was deferred at the request of officers because documents relating to it could not be provided in time for the meeting.

RESOLVED – That the item be deferred and a potential new date for consideration of the item be considered by the Chairman.

75 ADULTS SERVICES CHARGING AND TOP UP POLICY

This item was deferred at the request of officers because documents relating to it could not be provided in time for the meeting.

RESOLVED – That the item be deferred and a potential new date for consideration of the item be considered by the Chairman.

76 FORWARD PLAN

The Committee gave consideration to the forward plan.

RESOLVED – That the Forward Plan be noted.

77 WORK PROGRAMME

The Committee gave consideration to its work programme. It was noted that the next meeting of the Joint Health Scrutiny Committee with Cheshire West and Chester Council was due to take place on 9 March 2015. The Committee was informed that a workshop to develop an action plan for the Health and Wellbeing Board, following a peer review in November 2014, was to take place this month. A report and action plan would be available to share with the Committee at the April 2015 meeting. It was also noted that feedback from the Health and Housing workshop held by the Committee on 8 January 2015 would be provided at a future meeting.

RESOLVED – That the work programme be noted.

The meeting commenced at 10.05 am and concluded at 12.05 pm

Councillor M Simon (Chairman)